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14 May 2007


DEA&DP Ref: EG 12/2/3/2-D6/27-352/06, Patrysfontein 228/1 OCGT
Integrated Environmental Management: Region A1

Department of Environmental Affairs and Development Planning

Private Bag X6509

George   6530

Attention: Mr Danie Swanepoel

Dear Danie

EIA FOR PROPOSED ADDITIONAL UNITS AT MOSSEL BAY OCGT PLANT:
RESPONSE TO COMMENTS ON DRAFT EIR FROM DEAT: AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT AND CLIMATE CHANGE
1.
This letter is in response to the comments on the above draft Environmental Impact Report (EIR) provided by the Chief Director: Air Quality Management and Climate Change of the Department of Environmental Affairs and Tourism (DEAT), dated 2 May 2007 (Reference: 12/8/6).  The Chief Directorate in question had been requested to comment on the draft EIR of 22 March 2007 for the proposed addition of three generating units at the approved open cycle gas turbine (OCGT) plant in Mossel Bay.
2.
The Chief Directorate commented on three components of the specialist air quality assessment, namely;



the meteorological data used,


the emissions data used, and



the results derived from the assessment.

Note that much of the responses that follow is derived from information provided by the applicant, Eskom Holdings Ltd.
3.
The Chief Directorate found that the meteorological data used was appropriate for minimising modelling error and improving confidence in the outputs of the model.

4.
While the emissions data were considered to be comprehensive, the letter queried how the four different operating scenarios were developed.  These scenarios can be split into two, indicating the operation with and without the recommended mitigation measures being implemented.  The scenarios considered under these circumstances were developed based on the purpose of the installation, which is to provide peaking power for a limited period of time per day.  Empirical evidence has shown that a peaking period lasts for 1 to 3 hours at a time, and that peaking occurs twice daily, once in the morning and once in the evening.  Based on this, the operating scenarios were developed to cover extremes, being 2 to 6 hours.  These potential operating periods were considered in the assessment, as well as the longest possible operating period of 24 hours per day.


The letter also queried whether the fuel specification, which will influence the emissions, is the minimum fuel specification for the operation of the plant.  According to the applicant, the fuel specification provided is based on the minimum requirement of SANS 342, and forms part of the fuel supply contract with PetroSA.  If the fuel supplied does not meet the minimum fuel specification, the delivery of fuel will be rejected.


The letter queried what would constitute an upset operating condition, how frequently such conditions could occur, what the impact of such occurrence could be, and whether any control equipment will be installed to the proposed plant.  The applicant has indicated that the only upset operating condition which could be experienced is the plant operating for 24 hours per day, which has been considered in the specialist air quality assessment.  Further, the product specification from the manufacturer (Siemens) indicates that the units will be fitted with Continuous Emissions Monitoring Systems (CEMS) which continuously monitor the concentration of pollutants (NOx, CO and O2) in the turbine exhaust gas.  In the event that the NOx burners malfunction, or that the plant is working sub-optimally in terms of mechanical functioning, the plant would shut down.  The applicant states further that:

“There will be an alarm in the control room which will indicate to the operator to act accordingly to resolve the problem or shut down the plant.  There is an online monitoring of NOx, CO and O2 in the exhaust gas which is tuned to remain within the World Bank emission limits by controlling the air.  The only possibility of exceeding the limit is at low load which is during start-up and shut-down only (see paragraph 5.1.2 on page 5-2 of the Air Quality Assessment for the Open Cycle Gas Turbine (OCGT) Power Plant’s Additional Units in Mossel Bay, attached to the Environmental Impact Report (EIR) as Annexure L).  In those situations the operator would increase the load.  The Operating Procedure will require the operator to implement possible operating mitigation measures on the first warning alarm, should the lower emission limit be exceeded.  If the emissions approach the upper limit and the second alarm is triggered, then the Operating Procedure will require the operator to shut down the plant.  The upper limits which would trigger the second alarm in the current OCGT plant are set as follows: CO is set for 30mg/m3 which is according to SANS 1929:2005, and the NOx limit is set for 165mg/Nm3 (which is lower than the SANS 1929:2005 limit, which is 200 mg/Nm3).”
5.
While the modelled results indicate no exceedences of the proposed South African air quality standards, the letter does state that the greenhouse gas contribution of the project has not been determined.  This is an incorrect statement.  The specialist air quality assessment did consider CO2 emissions, albeit qualitatively (see paragraph 5.6.4 (pg 44) of the EIR and paragraph 5.6 on pages 5-10 of Annexure L attached thereto.).


The letter further recommends that “ambient air quality monitoring in the area be expanded to include at least the oxides of nitrogen”, and that the results from such could be used to assess the performance of the dispersion model.  It is expected that this matter will be addressed as a condition of the Record of Decision, and/or included in the APPA permit requirements of the Chief Directorate: Air Quality Management and Climate Change.
We trust that this response to the comments provided by the DEAT Air Quality Management and Climate Change Chief Directorate adequately addresses the issues raised.
Yours sincerely

NINHAM SHAND
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CHARLES NORMAN
BRETT LAWSON PrSciNat
Principle: Environmental Discipline Group
Associate: Environmental Discipline Group
Copy to:
Kuben Nair, Eskom Generation



Marwi Lushaba, DEAT: CD: AQM&CC
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